OCA 95-2274
16 August 1995

MEMORANDUM FOR THE RECORD

SUBJECT: Briefing for Representative James Leach (R-IA)

Regarding in Arkansas in the
(b1 Late 1980 = uly 1995
(h(3) ’
(h(6)

1. On 21 July 1995, at 1000 hours, in room 2186
Rayburn House Office Building, Chairman James Leach (R-IA),
Committee on Banking and Financial Services, and staffer
Jamie McCormick, received a briefing, at Leach's written
request to the DCI, on allegations of ‘
in Arkansas in the late 1980s. AgencprartICTpaﬁfg_Wéfé:
Investigative Staff, Office of Inspector General;

Chief, Legislation Group, Office of

fairs; and the undersigned. NSA participants

were: Frank Newton, Inspector General, and| |
Congressional Affairs. {:]

‘2. Representative Leach began the briefing by saying
that he was not interested in opening a new probe of U.S.
Contra-policy or suggesting wrongdoing by either Agency,
especially since he served on the October Surprise Task
Force, where he was convinced that the Marcos’ walked away
with billion of dollars. Leach, however, did say he based
his request for the briefing on reports that have appeared
in the press that refer to secret foreign bank accounts held
by prominent people in Mena, Arkansas,
land an Arkansas—-centered NEetworkK of

(e} (see attached incoming letter).
Leach also said that over a period of time he had talked to
a lot of people regarding this issue. He said that most of
the allegations contained within the articles were probably
false, but he felt an obligation to look into Whitewater
related allegations on behalf of the Banking Committee.
That said, some allegations may be credible, some totally
unbelievable, but as information goes out to the American
public in non-traditional ways, it becomes more believable.
[ ]

3. along with Frank Newton,
responded to Leacn s questions Tegarding each Agency's
current knowledge on involvement with any of the alleged
allegations contaired in his letter. Newton responded

oo |to all of the questions posed in the incoming
*YV4peYetter, but did, however, provide a brief broadbrush

-
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SUBJECT: Briefing for Representative James Leach

(R-IA) Regarding in
Arkansas in the = uly 1995

background briefing on how NSA conducts it normal daily
activities | said that the
capability ©r the IG to conduct its I depends in part
on cooperation by others with CIA and thus far the IG had
not look into any of these allegations. However,
said as he understood the current issue, a thorough searc
had been conducted by CIA regarding PROMIS/Inslaw issues
relating to Systematics, Inc., Mena, and Hadron, during a
much earlier timeframe. Also, he understood that thus far
very little information had been found to be responsive to
the exact allegations contained in the current letter.
however, did say that the Agency had perhaps made
Niiections within the larger picture of things. The
Agency was aware of Barry Seal, but had no relationship with
him nor any records regarding his activities in Mena. Seal’'s
association with the Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) was widely
publicized,]

As for PROMIS, that issue had been
looked at 1m~aeptm by the Senate Select Committee on
Intelligence (SSCI) and the House Judiciary Committee in 1991
and 1993. The conclusion then and still is that the Agency
never purchased any INSLAW/PROMIS software. |

]Chairman Leach was also Informed that we

had not found any records related to Systematics of Arkansas,
a banking software firm, 7 ’
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SUBJECT: Briefing for Representative James Leach
(R-IA) Regardingi in
Arkansas in the Lacte r9ous —=—=zr ouly 1995

5. |

6. Leach, after listening to the responses to his
earlier questions, proceeded to ask approximately 45 other
questions regarding the issue, basically repeating many
of the issues already addressed. For those questions and
responses, please see attached pages from a draft memorandum
provided by staffer Jamie McCormick and checked against the
personal notes of the undersigned. The responses in the
draft memorandum correspond correctly to the personal notes
of the undersigned. [:]

7. Leach concluded by once again saying he has an
obligation to look into the matter on behalf of the
Committee, and asked us to inform the DCI and DIRNSA that
he may hold hearings on these allegations in the fall. (U)

8. The briefing lasted approximately 90 minutes.
Leach was informed that the Agency would continue to
check its records, especially on questions relating to:
1) park-o-Meter; 2) CIA’s relationship, if any, with Terry
Reed; and 3) whether the CIA had any connection to Seal’s
cargo plane (serial number 54-0679). [::]

7/ CIA Liaison Group
Office of Congressional Affairs

Attachments
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With the Congress

07/25/95

Briefing for Representative Leach (R-IA) on Allegations of in
the Late 1980s

On 21 July, Chairman James Leach, Committee on Banking and Financial Services, and staffer
Jamie McCormick, received a briefing, at Leach's written request to the DCI, on allegations of
n Arkansas in the late 1980s. Leach based his request for the briefing on
reports that have appeared in the press that refer to secret foreign bank accounts held by

prominent people in Mena, Arkansas, land an
Arkansas-centered network of banks formed to CTA's Office of
Inspector General, and Office of Congressional ATfairs, along with Frank Newton,

NSA's Inspector General, responded to Leach's questions regarding each Agency's current
knowledge on involvement with any of the alleged allegations contained in his letter. Newton
responded [ to all of the questions posed in the incoming letter, but did, however,

provide a brief broadbrush background on how NSA conducts it normal daily activities

Lﬁ_]_'_f_“n—h—d'taid that a thorough search had been conducted by CIA, and thus far very
ttle informafion had been found to be responsive to the exact allegations contained in the letter.
|however, did say that the Agency was aware of Barry Seal, but had no
relationship with him nor any records regarding his activities in Mena. As for PROMIS, that issue
had been look at in-depth by both SSCI and the House Judiciary Committee in 1991 and 1993.
The conclusion then and still is that the Agency never purchased any INSLAW/PROMIS
software. Chairman Leach was informed that we had not found any records related to

Systematics of Arkansas, a banking software ﬁrm/

Leach, after listening to the responses to his earlier questions, proceeded to ask approximately
45 other questions regarding the issue, basically repeating many of the issues already addressed.
Leach said he had talked to a lot of people regarding this issue, but he emphasized that he was
aware that most of the allegations were false. Leach also said that he has concluded that some
allegations may be credible, some totally unbelievable, but as information goes out to the
American public in non-traditional ways, it becomes more believable. He has an obligation to
look into the matter on behalf of the Committee, and asked us to inform the DCI and DIRNSA
that he may hold hearing on these allegations in the fall. (U)
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Follow Up Actions: Provide McCormick with a copy of SSCI letter regarding PROMIS.
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Responses to Chairman Leach’s Prepared Questions of 7/21

Q: Have any of you or anyone else at either the CIA or NSA
discussed this inquiry from us with anyone at the White House, the
Department of Justice, or any other governmental organization?

A: No, not in response to Chairman Leach’s letters
requesting a brleflng.

Q: Does the CIA or NSA have knowledge of or any involvement
in clandestine activity by the U.S. Government or any private
parties in or near Mena, Arkansas, in the 1980s?

A: CIA’s knowledge |

Q: Have any reports on activities in and around Mena been
prepared for the DCI, specifically, for former Director Woolsey?

A: No. The only reports the CIA has were prepared in
conjunction with the Chairman’s requested briefing.

A. Gun Smuggling

Q: Did the CIA or NSA have any involvement in, or knowledge
of, any operation by the U.S. government or the so-called "private
benefactors" (led by retired Gen. Richard Secord) to train pilots
and/or ship arms from the Rich ihter-mountain regional airport at
Mena to the Nicaraguan Contras?

A: NSA, CIA representatives replied that they "did
not think so." \ noted that .the IG had checked back records
on this issue in 1994 and had discovered no responsive
information. CIA noted parenthetically that. the operational
activities of the private benefactors were mainly conducted
from southern Florida.

Q: (Skipped) If so, did any such activities take place with
the knowledge or approval of other Federal officials?.

Q: (Skipped) Did any such activities take place with the
knowledge or approval of Arkansas state government officials?

Q: (Skipped) Did the CIA contract with any Arkansas
manufacturers to build automatic weapons for the Nicaraguan
Contras?

Q: Does the CIA or NSA have any contractual or other
relationship with, or knowledge of, an Arkansas company called
Park-o~Meter, also known as POM? Do you have any reason to believe
that POM produced disposable fuel tanks for use by Barry Seal and
possibly others in connection with supplying arms to the Contras?




A: NSA CIA had no knowledge, but would check and
‘get back to the Thairman. '

B. Barry Seal and Associates

Q: (Skipped) Did the CIA or NSA have any contractual or
other relationship with the late Adler Barriman "Barry" Seal (Seal
was murdered, allegedly at the direction of Columbian drug lords,
in Feb. 1986)?

Q: To your knowledge, did any other government agency (such
as the DEA or DIA) have any contractual or other relationship with
Barry Seal? :

A: NSA,[:::l CIA had no confirmation from any other USG
agency, including DEA, that Seal had any government contracts

Q: Is the CIA or NSA aware of any IRS determination that
money earned by Seal between 1984 and 1986 was not illegal because.
of his alleged CIA-DEA employment?

A: NSa, CIA, no.

-~

Q: Did the CIA have any involvement in, or knowledge of, the
installation of cameras on Seal’s C-123K transport plane for use in
a 1984 “"sting" operation against the Sandinista official Federico
Vaughan? .

-

Az CIA, no.

- Q: Was Seal’s C-123K cargo plane, christened Fat Lady
" (serial number 54-~0679), sold by Seal to the CIA or any other U.S.-
government related entity? Was this the plane later shot down over
Nicaragua with a load of arms destined for the Contras?

A: CIA, no records suggested it was.

Q: Did the CIA have any contractual or other relationship
with Terry Reed, a former Air Force intelligence officer (who
claims he had a relationship with the CIA in the 1980s) and author
of Compromised: Clinton, Bush and the CIA?

A: CIA had no.knowledge, but would check further.

Q: Did the CIA ever have dealings with former Arkansas State
Trooper L.D. Brown?

A: CIA no, not beyond as stated earlier in their
presentation.




Q: Is the CIA or NSA aware of any attempts by federal or
state officials to interfere with or terminate any investigation
(by] the IRS, Justice Department, Arkansas State Police or any
other law-enforcement authorities into Mena-related criminal
conduct?

A: CIA, no. NSA,

C. Narcotics Smuggling

Q: Did the CIA or NSA have any knowledge of or involvement
in illicit narcotics trafficking, possibly by rogue operatives, in
or near Mena, Arkansas? As you know, there have been allegations
that on their return flights from Central America, pilots smuggled
more than 20 tons of cocaine into Mena.

A: NSA, ;FIA no. oted that CIA had also
checked with it nter-narcotics ter, which reported no
responsive information available. ‘

D.  Money Laundering

Q: Did the CIA or NSA have any indication that _]

—
“JTocal businesses and Arkansas! 'n

A:  NSa, |:| CIA, no.

_ Q: Does the CIA or NSA have any indication that Barry Seal
or his associates attempted to f~

L

A: NSA, —‘CIA, no.

Q: Does the CIA or NSA have any indication that the proceeds
from illicit narcotics trafficking might have been laundered
through the Arkansas Development Finance Authority (ADFA)?

Ac: NSA, CIA, no.

Q: Does the CIA or NSA know of any secret

or more ever held by U.S. citizens domiciled 1In
ATKansas at anytlme between 1988 and now? ‘ i

A:  Nsa |

4J7CIA Tepresentatives stated




that, to the best of their knowledge, CIA maintained the same
policy. CIA also stated that any records it might have had

h PP

would have been | I
]

Q: (Not directly asked, referenced indirectly in the eighth
question in this section) 1Is the CIA or NSA aware, directly or

indirectly, of any efforts by [ |

E

Q: Does the CIA or NSA have the capability of

CIA
Yespect any

spresentatives had no _specific Knowledge Wit
such agency capability,[

‘Q: does CIA and/or NSA have the
capability,‘dlrectly oF througm anotner party, of

!

" Al Newton stated NSA has,

Q: (Skipped) Does CIA or NSA have the authority to]

f

Q: Does the CIA maintain a team of skilled computer hackers
who routinely break into the electronic data systems of foreign
banks? According to one source, this group is informally known as
the Fifth Column. Correct?

Q: (Skipped) Has CIA or NSA ever




Q: - (Skipped) Does NSA

Q: Does the CIA or NSA know O
participated in, directly or indirectly,
-- notably versions of a program in use at the Justice Department
called PROMIS -- or other devices to f
of facilitating|

systems?

A:

NSA

f or has either agency
efforts to sell software

oreign banks for the purpose
of their electronic data

cIa, |

\

Q: (Skipped) Does the CIA
this software has been sold? |

or NSA know of customers to whom

Q: Is the CIA or NSA aware of any attempts bgjﬁ

Az

Q0: Does CIA or NSA know of any efforts ngf—f

NSA,

CIA, no.

A:

Q: Has the CIA or NSA received
from the sale of PROMIS or similar so

NSA,

CIA, no.

arms shipments to the Contras?

A:

Q: (Skipped) Are there any indications of cooperation by

CIA,

no.

NSA,

any indication that proceeds
ftware were used to finance




Q: (Skipped) Is the CIA or NSA aware of any unauthorized
efforts, possibly in the margin of legitimate intelligence

operations,|

Q: Does CIA or NSA know of a Charles Hayes, who was born on
4/27/35, whose social security number is and now
resides in Nancy, Kentucky?

A: CIA, no. NSa,

Q: If so, has Hayes ever had any ties to the CIA or NSA or
any other U.S. government agency? Have these ties been severed?

A: CIA, no. NSA,

Q: Hayes claims to be able to break into the electronic data

systems of foreign banks. Has CIA E—

Azgj

Q: Is NSA or CIA aware of_an account, number b-142AB2, at
the Banca Della Svizzera Italiano in Chiasso, said to have belonged
to [the late] Vincent Foster?

A: NSA, CIA, no. ’7

Q: Does the CIA or NSA know of any secret Swiss bank account
that used to belong jointly to Vincent Foster and others that
supposedly contained contributions to the Clinton presidential
campaign?

A: CIA, no. NSA,

Q: Is the CIA or NSA aware of a fund known variously as the
Medders or Meeders or Meadows or Meadors or Meaders Trust or
Estate? The fund was allegedly first deposited . at Pittsburgh’s
Mellon Bank some 50 years ago and is now reportedly worth billions.
The allegation is that a legally ungoverned trust is under de facto
control of a bank or group of banks under prospective leggl
challenges from alleged heirs and that income is so large that.lt
is used as a secret source of funds by banks and high-ranking
officials for sensitive political and economic purposes. The money
and its movements, it is alleged, are hidden in a complex web of
electronic transactions among the banks in the group.




A: CIA, no. NSA,

Q: Is it possible, and does CIA have any information that
might suggest, that alleged Mena-related activities stemmed from
private Nicaraguan assistance groups, perhaps under the

supervision, or at least knowledge of, Colonel North? -

A: NSA, CIA was not aware of any such activity in
or around Mena

Q: Did either NSA or CIA ever request that any government
organization cooperate or not interfere with aircraft operating out
[of] Mena?

A: CIA, no. NSa,

Q: Is either the NSA or the CIA aware of any foreign
governments who might have provided arms, money or any assistance
to any group operating out of Mena?

A: NSA, CIA, no.
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RELEASELDATE: v OCA 95-2274
28-Sep-2009 16 August 1995
MEMORANDUM FOR THE RECORD
SUBJECT: Briefing for Re i James Leach (R-IA)
Regarding in Arkansas in the (bx1)
Late 1980s With NSA - 21 July 1995 (b)(3)

1. On 21 July 1995, at 1000 hours, in room 2186
Rayburn House Office Building, Chairman James Leach (R-IA2),
Committee on Banking and Financial Services, and staffer
Jamie McCormick, received a briefing, L i
request to the DCI, on allegations of
in Arkansas in the late 1980s. Agency participants were:

Investigative Staff, Office of Inspector General;

| Chief, Legislation Group, Office of
Congressional Affairs; and the undersigned. NSA participants
were: Frank Newton, Inspector General, and
Congressional Affairs.

2. Representative Leach began the briefing by saying
that he was not interested in opening a new probe of U.S.
Contra-policy or suggesting wrongdoing by either Agency,
especially since he served on the October Surprise Task
Force, where he was convinced that the Marcos’ walked away
with billion of dollars. Leach, however, did say he based
his request for the briefing on reports that have appeared
in the press that refer to secret foreign bank accounts held
by prominent people in Mena, Arkansas,\ .

and an Arkansas-centered network of

banks formed to‘ Msee attached incoming letter).
Leach also said that over a period of time he had talked to
a lot of people regarding this issue. He said that most of
the allegations contained within the articles were probably
false, but he felt an obligation to look into Whitewater
related allegations on behalf of the Banking Committee.
That said, some allegations may be credible, some totally:
unbelievable, but as information goes out to the American

public¢ in non-traditional ways, it becomes more believable.
3 along with Frank Newton,

responded to Leach's questions regarding each Agency's
current knowledge on involvement with any of the alleged
allegations contaired in his letter. Newton responded
to all of the questions posed in the incoming

¥ 'CO'Q»A etter, but did, however, provide a brief broadbrush
_ _ _
waeer | T- 10QJ
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SUBJECT: Briefing for Representative James Leach

e, RegardingEat641YUv5444214UL1n
Arkansas in the = ly 1995

background briefing on how NSA conducts it normal daily
‘activities \said that the
capability of the IG to conduct its function depends in part
on cooperation by others with CIA and thus far the IG had
not look into any of these allegations. However,
said as he understood the current issue, a thorough search
had been conducted by CIA regarding PROMIS/Inslaw issues
relating to Systematics, Inc., Mena, and Hadron, during a
much earlier timeframe. Also, he understood that thus far
very little information had been found to be responsive to
the exact allegations contained in the current letter.

‘however, did say that the Agency had perhaps made

some connections within the larger picture of things. The
Agency was aware of Barry Seal, but had no relationship with
him nor any records regarding his activities in Mena. Seal'’s
association with the Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) was widely
publicized, \

| As for PROMIS, that issue had been

Iooked at in-depth by the Senate Select Committee on
Intelligence (SSCI) and the House Judiciary Committee in 1991
and 1993. The conclusion then and still is that the Agency

never purchased any INSLAW/PROMI

|
| Chairman Leach was also informed that we

had not found any records related to S '
a banki i
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SUBJECT: Briefing for Representative James Leach
(R-IA) Regarding in
Arkansas 1n the Late s - uly 1995

6. Leach, after listening to the responses to his
earlier questions, proceeded to ask approximately 45 other
questions regarding the issue, basically repeating many
of the issues already addressed. For those questions and
responses, please see attached pages from a draft memorandum
provided by staffer Jamie McCormick and checked against the
personal notes of the undersigned. The responses in the
draft memorandum correspond correctly to the personal notes
of the undersigned. [::%:]

7. Leach concluded by once again saying he has an
obligation to look into the matter on behalf of the
Committee, and asked us to inform the DCI and DIRNSA that
he may hold hearings on these allegations in the fall. (U)

8. The briefing lasted approximately 90 minutes.
Leach was informed that the Agency would continue to
check its records, especially on questions relating to:
1) Park-o-Meter; 2) CIA‘s relationship, 'if any, with Terry

-Reed; and 3) whether the CIA had any connection to Seal’s

cargo plane (serial number 54-0679). [::::]

Office of Congressional Affairs
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9 July 1995 (\}/L -

Note to: Acting DCI
From: Acting Director of Public Affairs
Subject: - Mena

The August issue of The American Spectator takes up the Mena
story in a way that is likely to resonate on the Hill (see
attached article).

It alleges, explicitly and implicitly, that an aircraft
operated by a CIA front company in 1984 used the airfield at
Mena, Arkansas, as a staging point for weapons supply flights
to the Contras in Nicaragua; on the return flights from
Honduras, the aircraft allegedly carried illegal narcotics to
Mena. The narcotics runner, Barry Seal, allegedly paid off
then-Governor Clinton's protege, L. D. Brown, and one Dan
Laseter, a Clinton contributor. .
This is the latest repackaging of allegations previously made
by the Wall Street Journal.

‘I understand that Fred Hitz or someone from his staff, along
with other CIA officers will brief Congressman Leach on
Friday 21 July in an attempt to address his concerns about
these and other allegations.

In the mean time, we are receiving media queries on Mena,
most recently from Michael Isikoff of Newsweek on 18 July.
With the publication of The American Spectator article, we.
expect more. '

At present, although there is no reason to believe any gf the
allegations, we are declining to comment publicly, pending
exhaustive searches of DO files, as tasked by OCA. As soon
as those searches are complete, we hope to have a crisp _
public statement that distances us from the allegations--if
the Agency IG's look into them does not constrain us from
doing so.

CC: EXDIR, GC, D/OCA, ADDO, ADDI, DDA, D/AIS _/
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Memorandum for the Record

EVENT: MEMBER BRIEFING DATE:07/21/95 TIME: 1000 STATUS: COMPLETE
PLACE: 2186 RHOB '

FOR: REP LEACH

SuBJ: MONEY LAUNDERING

. =~ ( PARTICIPANTS ) === :
ASSOC ‘NAME . ( ) ROLE
REP. LEACH, JAMES A. (R-IA)
cIa TBD , : BRFR
cra \ \ (DCI/OCA) ' SPRT
=---- { EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ) -----

1. On 21 July 1995, at 1000 hours, in room 2186 Rayburn House Office Building, Chairman James Leach (R-IA),
Committee on Banking and Financial Services, and staffer Jamie McCormick, received a briefing, at Leach's written request to
the DCI, on allegations of | \
in Arkansas in the late 1980s. Agency participants were: Investigative Staff, Office of Inspector General;
SChieﬁ Legislation Group, Office of Congressional Affairs; and the undersigned. NSA participants were: Frank
Newton, inspector General, an4 ‘Congressional Affairs

---—( ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ) -~

2. Representative Leach began the briefing by saying that he was not interested in opening a new probe of U.S.
Contra-policy or suggesting wrongdoing by either Agency, especially since he served on the October Surprise Task Force,
where he was convinced that the Marcos’ walked away with billion of dollars. Leach, however, did say he based his request for
the briefing on reports that have appeared in the press that refer to secret foreign bank accounts held by prominent people in
Mena, Arkansas, and an Arkansas-centered network of banks formed t

see attached incoming letter). Leach also said that over a period of time he had talked to a lot of people regarding this
issue. He said that most of the allegations contained within the articles were probably false, but he felt an obligation to look
into Whitewater related allegations on behalf of the Banking Committee. That said, some allegations may be credible, some
totally unbelievable, but as information goes out to the American public in non-traditional ways, it becomes more believable.

3. along with Frank Newton, responded to Leach's questions regarding each Agency's z:urrent
knowledge on invoivement with any of the alleged allegations contained in his letter. Newton responded ’to all of
the questions posed in the incoming letter, but did, however, provide a brief broadbrush background briefing on now NSA
conducts it normal daily activities‘ said that the

capability of the |G to conduct its function depends in part on cooperation by others with CIA and thus far the 1G had not look
into any of these allegations. However, Ssaid as he understood the current issue, a thorough search had been
conducted by CIA regarding PROMIS/Inslaw issues relating to Systematics, Inc., Mena, and Hadron, during a much earlier
timeframe. Also, he understood that thus far very little information had been found to be responsive to the exact allegations
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contained in the current letter however, did say that the Agency had perhaps made some connections within
the larger picture of things. The Agency was aware of Barry Seal, but had no relationship with him nor any records regarding
his activities in Mena. \ \ ‘

\ As for PROMIS, that issue had been looked at in-depth by the Senate Select
Committee on Intelligence (SSCI) and the House Judiciary Committee in 1991 and 1993. The conclusion then and still is that
the Agency never purchased any INSLAW/PROMIS software. | '

\Chairman Leach was also informed that we

had not found any records related to Systematics of Arkansas. a bankina software firm.’

6. Leach, after listening to the responses to his earlier questions, proceeded to ask approximately 45 other questions
regarding the issue, basically repeating many of the issues already addressed. For those questions and responses, please see
attached pages from a draft memorandum provided by staffer Jamie McCormick and checked against the personal notes of
the undersigned. The responses in the draft memorandum correspond correctly to the personal notes of the undersigned.

7. Leach concluded by once again saying he has an obligation to look into the matter on behalf of the Committee, and
asked us to inform the DCI and DIRNSA that he may hold hearings on these allegations in the fall. (U)

8. The briefing lasted approximately 90 minutes. Leach was informed that the Agency would continué to check its
records, especially on questions relating to: 1) Park-o-Meter; 2) CIA’s relationship, if any, with Terry Reed; and 3) whether the
CIA had any connection to Seal’s cargo plane (serial number 54-0679). D

CIA Liaison Group
Office of Congressional Affairs
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Briefing for Chairman Leach, House Banking Committee (b) (2)

What we found from our searches

3) PROMIS - We have searched our files extensively in
response to previous congressional inquiries on ISLAW’s
PROMIS (Prosecutor’s Management Information System). As
noted in the DDCI's response to Chairman Brooks on 18 Nov
91, and a similar letter from D/OCA to the SSCI on 2 Aug 93,
we have found no records about INSLAW’'s PROMIS software, or
the allegations that it had been misappropriated,
distributed or used in the manner alleged in these articles.

As noted in the letter to the SSCI, the Department of
Justice appointed a special counsel to investigate the
INSLAW matter and a report was submitted to the House
Judiciary Committee on 17 June 1993 that may be of
assistance to your review.

4) We have no found no record of any CIA contact or
contracts with Systematics, Inc. of Arkansas, nor any
information about the allegations that Systematics, Inc.
monitored or engaged in illegal activities.

5) We have found no record of a Charles Hayes who was a CIA
operative in Latin America or Central America.’

6) We have found no records of CIA activities at the Mena
airfield during the 1980‘s. CIA’s Iran-Contra files were
searched and found no reference to Mena or its use by the
“private benefactors”, a term used to refer to the '

unauthorized Contra support operation run by Oliver North.

7) Adler Berriman “Barry” Seal has been the subject of
several CIA records searches over the past decade, most
recently in June 1995 at the request of HPSCI. No records
of any contact with Seal or information about his alleged
activities has ever been discovered during these searches.

9 b¥s-)




Our searches did determine that a person named Lawrence D.
Brown, DOB 2 Oct 1958, applied for CIA employment in 1988.
Following routine processing his application was rejected in
November 1988. Without further biographic information, we
cannot determine if this is the same L.D. Brown mentioned in
the articles. T :

from the Office of Inspector General will
. other issues mentioned in your letter. -
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MEMORANDUM FOR: Inspector General
FROM: Director of Central Intelligence

SUBJECT: Allegations of Money Laundering and
Other Activities in Mena, Arkansas

1. Chairman Leach of the House Banking Committee wrote
and requested that the Inspector General investigate various
allegations of money laundering in connection with
activities in and around Mena, Arkansas. I have told the
Chairman your office would investigate the issues raised in
his letter. I request that you issue a report, including an
unclassified version, if possible, which will address the
following core issues:

¢ What, if any, information does CIA have that
indicates it had any contact with the individuals
or businesses identified in the Chairman’s letter
of & ¥February, or of money laundering, narcotics
trafficking, arms smuggling, or other illegal
activities (including illicit zircraft
modifications) based at, or operating through, the
airport at Mena, Arkansas, from 1980 to the
present;

¢ What was the extent of CIA’s contact or
relationship with Adler Berriman “Barry” Seal;

¢ Whether CIA tried to directly or indirectly
influence or request that the Department of Justice
or other Federal agencies alter any investigations
or prosecutions of money-laundering in or around
Mena, Arkansas;

¢ Whether CIA, or anyone acting on CIA‘s behalf, has
carried out any activities in Mena, Arkansas, or the
area north of Mena, known as Nella, Arkansas, and if
so, did CIA brief, or otherwise communicate this
information to Arkansas state officials in the
1980s.

2. The Chairman has also requested that all related
documents be made available to appropriate Committee staff.
I will wait until your inquiry is completed before acting on
this request since traditionally classified documents




SUBJECT: Allegations of Money Laundering and
Other Activities in Mena, Arkansas

involving operational matters are provided only to our
oversight committees, and I have shared this view with
Chairman Leach.

4. Once you have an opportunity to review the Banking
Committee request, please provide me with an estimate of
when you will be able to produce a report, and I will
provide that estimate to Chairman Leach.

John Deutch
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Joanne Isham

Status Report on Inguiry from Chairman Leach (b)(6)
House Banking and Finance Committee

’Briefing Request

¢ Chairman Leach (R-IA) wrote you on 11 July 95
seeking your ‘help in ”“verifying or laying to rest
various allegations of money laundering in Arkansas
in the late 1980s.” (Copy of letter attached as Tab

A).

¢ He asked for a briefing from the CIA’s Inspector
General to address 7 topics ranging from efforts to
l | to whether the Agency was aware of
certain companies and individuals who allegedly
operated in or around Mena, Arkansas.

* The worst of these allegations, faxed to us before
the briefing, credited to a CIA source in a magazine
called Media Bypass, is that the CIA discovered that
Vince Foster was a spy for the Israelis, and used a
Cray supercomputer at _CIA ‘Headquarters to
surreptitiously drain $2.73 million from Foster’s
secret Swiss account. The article goes on to
speculate that Foster committed suicide because he
discovered his account had been drained. (Copy of
article attached as Tab B.) )

¢ A similar briefing request was sent to NSA.

Briefing by CIA and NSA
® On 21 July 95, Congressional Affairs and Inspector
General representatives from CIA and NSA met with
Chairman Leach and his assistant staff director,

James McCormick.

¢ Chairman Leach was very cordial at the briefing, but
his first question was whether anyone at either
agency had discussed his inquiry with anyone at the
White House, the Department of Justice, or any other
governmental organization and he was told we had not
discussed this outside the agency.

®* The CIA’s IG had not conducted investigations into :
these allegations and had a limited role in the 14
briefing. The Agency’‘s OCA representative advised

g
i]ED that 'we had not finished our records review, but we
were aware of one of the individuals identified in

(\0)
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the Chairman’s 11 July letter, Barry Seal (now
deceased). We knew of Seal because of previous
inguiries (in connection with criminal prosecutions
of other individuals), but advised we had no
relationship to Seal nor any records regarding his
activities in Mena, Arkansas.

We also advised him that both the SSCI and the House
Judiciary Committee conducted in-depth reviews in
1991 and 1993, respectively, about another subject
of his 11 July letter inquiry, INSLAW’s PROMIS
software. The conclusion then and now, is that the
Agencv never nurchased anv TNSTLAW/PROMTS anftware

During the briefing, Chairman Leach read-from a list
of additional questions provided to us after the
briefing. The briefers indicated that we could not
answer all of these questions conclusively, and
Chairman Leach asked for some limited follow-up
searches. (Copy of additional questions attached as

Tab C.)

NSA’s IG had no information about the guestionrs '
posed in the 11 July letter, but did provide a brief
broadbrush background on how NSA conducts its normal

daily activities

We are continuing to search our records for
responsive information and once the review of these
materials is completed, we will brief the findings
to our oversight committees, the NSC and Chairman

Leach.
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Hon. John M. Deutsch yb/ - ;EP 33‘) ]
Director s C)C‘ -
Central Intelligence Agency 123 ) 4

Washington, D,C. 20505

Dear Director Deutsch:

I am writing to seek your agency’s help in verifying or laying to
rest various allegations of money laundering in Arkansas in the
late 19805, For that purpose, I would request a briefing from
the CIA’s Inspector General on Friday, July 14 before 1:00 p.m.;
if that isg not possible, Monday, July 17, would also be a conve-
nient day. v

The reports I have in mind have appeared in the general press
and, sometimes in sensational form, in more narrow-gauged out-
lets, including the Internet. They speak of smecret foreign bank
accounts held by prominent people in Arkansas, apecial software
to monitor bank transfers, an Arkansag-centered network of banks
formed to launder money, and gimilar tales. I would like to
determine whether there 18 any substance at all to these stories.

Specifically, I would like your Inspector General to tell me
whethexr the Agency: :

(1) knows of any secret bank accounts held by U.8. citizens
~domiciled in Arkansas at any time between 1988 and now;

(2) 1s aware, directly or indirectly, of any efforts by computer
hackers, U.8.-government related or othexrwlse, to penetrate banks
for the purpose of monitoring accounts and transactions;

(3) knows of or has participated, directly or indirectly, in
efforts to sall Bofrware--notably versions of a program in use at
the Justice Department called PROMIS--or clandestinely produced
devices to foreilgn banks for the purpose of collecting economic
intelligence and information of illicit monev transfers:




page two

(4) is cognizant of any attempts by 8Systematics Inc, an Arkansas-
based electronic data processor that is now a division of All-
tell, to monitor oxr engage in the laundering of drug money or
proceeds of other 1llega1 activities, notably those conducted
through Mena, Ark.;

P

LA

(5) can provide information abbﬁg-charles Hayes, a businessman in
Nancy, Kentucky, who claims to have been a CIA operative in Latin .
and Central America, among other places;

(6) knew of oxr was involved in, directly or indirectly, any ng
covert activities by the U.8. government or any private parties Q?&
(the so-called "private benefactors") in or around Mena, Arkan-

sas, in the late 1980s; .

(7)" had any contractual or other relationship with the late Adler
Barriman "Barrxy" Seal in the 19808 or knew about his act1v1t1es .
in connection with MENA. D

o C\ wk‘\ o : ( Fby

I would appreciate your help in shedding light on these matters. _/;/”//
«

-

s1i

erely, Loy

A. Leach . . ' v
Ch man y
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Investigate Mena

" 'For more than a year we have been
reporting on the mysteries of tiny
Mena airfield in western Arkansas.
The clouded tale of drug smugglers
and spy operations in the 19§0s is a po-
tential embarrassment to the Democ-
ratic governor who ran the state and
the Republicans who ran the White
“House, But the big story here is not
primarily about who did what 10 years
ago. It's about a very 1990s concern:
drugs. How has our system broken
down so that illegal drugs can be
moved into this country -on such a
large scale? '

- ‘This week, the American Spectator
magazine adds another piece to the
Mena puzzle with a story about
Arkansas State Trooper L.D. Brown
written by Spectator editor R. Emmett
Tyrrell. Now, the account’s weakness
and strength are one and the same—
L.D. Brown himself. Its weakness is
that it is a single-source account; its
strength is that L.D. Brown is an im-
portant source. A potentially key
player in the Whitewater saga, Mr.
Brown corroborates part of David
Hale’s claim that Mr. Clinton put
pressure on him for financial help.

. Mr. Brown now says that while
working on then-Gov. Clinton’s secu-
rity detail, he applied to the Central
Intelligence Agency, with the gover-
nor's support. Following CIA testing
and an exchange of letters—supplied
t0,Mr. Tyrrell by Mr. Brown—the state
irooper claims he was contacted by
Mena drug smuggler Barry Seal. Soon
after, he was on two Central American
flights from Mena airport aboard Mr.
Seal’s C-123K, running guns fo the
Contras. Mr. Brown, a former nar-
cotics officer, says that when Mr. Seal

- showed him cash and cocaine ship:

ments, he quit. When he confronted
Gov. Clinton about .the drugs and
money, Mr. Brown allegedly was told
not to worry about it. “That’s
Lasater’s deal,” Mr. Brown claims
Gov. Clinton told him. )

- Tobe sure, Dan Lasater is a color-
ful figure. He ran a free-wheeling
bond house in Little Rock, and was
ftiend and campaign supporter to Bill
Clinton. In 1986, in a case that also in-
volved Mr. Clinton’s brother, Roger,
Mr. Lasater pleaded guilty to a co-
caine distribution charge and went off
to prison for a brief stay. The federal
prosecutor who handled the case was
George Proctor, a Carter-era ap-
pointee who now heads the Justice De-
partment’s Office of International Af-
fairs; Mr. Proctor’s office has author-
ity over aspects of another of our long-
standing concerns, BCCL One of Mr.
Proctor's  predecessors ~ at * OIA,
Michael Abbell, was in the news re-

‘cently when he was indicted on racke-

téering charges in connection with the
Cali drug cartel. .
Our own reporting about Mena
points more toward Washington than
Arkansas. We want to know what the
federal government knew about drugs
and money flowing through.the area.
Our Micah Morrison has painstak-
ingly separated fact from fiction re-
garding Mena and Barry Seal's in-
volvement with the CIA, the Contras

and cocaine traffic. Mr. Seal, a some-
time informant for the Drug Enforce-
ment Agency, smuggled several bil-
lion dollars’ worth of drugs into the
country. In our October 18 story “The
Mena Coverup,” we detailed the short-
circuiting of nine 'separate state and
federal probes into Mena. Reliable
sources in the intelligence community
now tell us that in the years after Mr.
Seal’s death, some activities contin-
ued around Mena: an AWACs-Patriot
system was tested, CIA contract
planes were repainted, and the area
was included in a counterterror exer-
cise run out of nearby Fort Chaffee.

But the heart of Mena, we suspect,
is narcotics, and on this aspect an-
swers are lacking. Drugs? Arkansas
officials wave off the question, sdying
Mena was a federal responsibility.
The CIA blames a “rogue DEA opera-
tion;" the DEA isn't talking; the FBI
says “no comment,” .

-The betting around here s that L.D.
Brown and others in the Arkansas
State Police know a lot more about the
matter—including what the feds were
up to—than they are letting on. State
police officers are starting to show up
all over the Mena story. While we dis-
count the extreme speculation in seli-
proclaimed CIA operative Terry
Reed's book about Mena, “Compro-
mised,” it's interesting to note that Mr.
Reed ismaking headway in Little Rock
with his lawsuit against former state
troopers Tommy Baker- and Buddy
Young; Mr. Young also served for a
time as Gov. Clinton’s security chief,
Mr. Reed’s lawyers have deposed sev-

- eral state troopers in connection with

the case, M. Tyrrell says. Last year
“CBS Evening News” reported that a
top Arkansas State Police official
played a role in derailing an early ef-
fort to advance the Mena probe.

Some reports to the contrary, we
see no indication that Independent
Counsel Kenneth Starr is investigat-
ing Mena or Mr. Lasater. Mr. Starr
appears to be sticking close to. his
mandate to examine matters arising
from Madison, the Whitewater Devel-
opment Co., or Mr. Hale’s Capital
Management Services. ’

Yet Mena cries out for investiga-
tion. A congressional committee with
resources, subpoena power, and the
perseverance displayed by some past
chairmen should look into this. If some
chips fall on the Republican side, so be
it. Important questions need to be an-
swered. )

Was Mena simply a remote outpost
of the Cold War? Or was it a major
trans-shipment point for drugs and
money laundering? To what degree
were government officials involved?
Where did all the cocaine and cash in-
volved in the Barry Seal operation go?
Were Arkansas financial institutions
involved in laundering drug money?

Again, how Mena worked is of
Some present moment as the U.S. con-
tinues to wrestle with illegal drugs—
their use apparently on the increase
again among teenagers—and the at-
tendant corruption. Mena may pro-
vide a window into one of the big
sources of this problem.

Big Temptation

" Philanthropic and productive are

Bank a bit from the rect nf tha aran.”

.schbach,

Lhe Fligh

By CrrisTINA HOFF SOMMERS

New Jersey sponsors the “New Jersey
Project”: It§ goal Is to “"transform” the
curriculum in higher education to make it
more multicultural and “inclusive." The
project circulates a "guideline” cautioning
that “much previous scholarship has of-
fered a white, male, Eurocentric, hetero-
sexist, and elite view of ‘reality.”” Citing
the words of feminist historian of science
Elizabeth Fee, the guideline explains how
male scientists exploit nature the way a vi-
olent man exploits a helpless woman: “Na-
ture was female, and knowledge was cre-
ated as an act of aggression—~a passive na-
ture had to be interrogated, unclothed,
penetrated, and compelled by man to re-
veal her secrets.™’

The document is striking because it em-
anates from an odfficial government
agency. But it is the kind of attack that has
been routinely leveled at science by multi-
culturalists, radical environmentalists,
feminist theorists and others on the cul-
tural left'for the past several years. One
example from academia is a 1986 convoca-

tion address delivered by Donald Har- -

ward, then vice president of academic af-
fairs at the College of Wooster in Ohio. Mr.
Harward informed the students that
“there is no objectivity even in science,”
and put them in the know by telling them
that “learning and teaching have less to do
with truth, reality and objectivity than we

" had assumed.” He has since gone on to be-

come president of Bates College in Maine.

An Active Defense .

Until quite recently, professional scien-
tists studiously avoided reacting to these
sort of “critigiles.” Fortunately, some are
beginning to realize that “antf-science” is
a serious threat that calls for an active de-
fense. Last month, under the auspices of
the New York Academy of Sciences, Uni-
versity of Virginia biologist Paul Gross
and Rutgers mathematician Norman
Levitt helped organize “The Flight from
Science and Reason,” a high-level confer-
ence of more than 200 scientists, physi-
cians and humanists who met “to consider
the contemporary flight from reason and
its associated anti-sciénce,”

The distinguished panelists, who in-
cluded Harvard economist Henry
Rosovsky and Nobel Latreate Dudley Her-
explored “fashionable irra-
tionalisms,” and examined “the threats,
or the damage already done, to public un-
derstanding . . . and considered practical
possibilities for effective responses.”

In one damage report Prof. Gerald
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Actions Sp.

The greatest illusion in business is that
employees work for managers; this, of
course, is exactly the inverse of reality. As
the unions learned in the 1920s, the day
that a significant group of employees
chooses to stop working, managers are
helpless to carry out the tasks of business.

If you are a manager, the work force ar-
rives at your doorstep every day primed to
observe how you teach and implement the
corporate culture and to measure how you
exercise the standards your organization
purports to honor. If the employees believe

-in you, they reward you with superiot ef-

forts. If you fail to meet their expectations,
they punish you with substandard quality
and efficiency. Work force productivity is
a fair measure of how employees rate a
manager’s performance.

If you accept this premise, then you also
will recognize that managers are primar-
ily in the teaching business. Every philos-
ophy, attitude and business practice used
by a manager in dealing with his employ-
ees ultimately will be re-expressed by the

employees through the quality of their .
‘1 work. Show me an organization with a
- high absentee rate, problems with expense -

accounts, or a cover-your-butt mentality,
and I'll show you a manager who is se-
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“Fostergate”

By James R. Norman

Was White House Deputy Counsel
Vince Foster Selling U.S. Secrets to

Israel? The CIA Suspects He Was.

© 1588 WY JAMES R NORMAN
REMRINTED WITH PRIMISSON

wo weaks before his death
on July 20, 1993, White
Housa Deputy Counsel
Vinesnt W. Fosteér went
into a deep mk. Tho official cause of
death, given by Independent Counsel
Hobert Fiske Jr., was suicide driven
by depression over, among othoy
things. some newmpaper sditorials.
But Vince Foster had a much bigger
and darker resson to bs uriously
bummed out. Ye had
;ust.,..l_ounod he was
under investigation for
aiplonage.
Quuragsous? To say
tho lcast. But & longthy
invesugaton haa locat-
ed more \han a dozoh
spurces with connec- §
tions to tha intelligence
comununfly who coh- B8
firm a shocking story of §
monay Jaundoring and
oapionage connacted lo
ths highest lavala of the
White Houss. Without
grants of immunity, the
sotrces risk going to N
prison for vialavon of B8
the Nationzl! Soourity
Adt. Virtuslly all have B
domanded anonymity. 8
According té a vowr- B
an Central Intelligence

Agancy operative close to the Foster
investigation, Fosier's firsl indication
of trouble came when he inquired
shout his coded bank ascount ai
Banca Della Svizzera [taliana in
Chiazso, Switzerland, and found the
sccount empty. Poster was shodked
to lsarn from the bank that someone
using- his secret authorization code
had withdrawn all $2.73 million he
had stashed there and had moved b

Jul., 14 1995 11:13aM P3

to, of all places, the U.S. Treasury.

Then, according fo crodit csrd
records reviewed by a privaie fnvest)-
gator who has revesled them, Foster -
canceled the iwoe-day round-trip TWA
and Swiss Alt plane tickets 1o Genevs
he had purchased on his American
Bxpress card through the White
Houss wavel offlce onJuly 1.

Discretely he began asking what
was sfool, says the ClA souroe, con-
, firming that someons in
B the Whila House tpped
8 him off. Jt wag bad naws.

“Thae CIA had Fostor under

3l scrious investigsiion for
Yoaking high-level socrots
10 the State of lerael.

Por months, & small
eadra of CIA computer
2 hackors known as the
Fifih Column, armed with
4 Crey Buparsomputar,
B2 had boen monitoring
BN Toster's Swiss account.
SN They had loosiad it by
¥ teacking money [lows
from various lsraeli gov-
ernment sccounts aftor
BN finding Fostdr's name

l while socretlly snooping
through tho eleciranie
B ilos of Israal's Mossad,
Then by mooping through
4 the benk flles, they

AUG 1995 Media Bypass Magaring J-W-Bypﬂn
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galhered all the Information needed

1o withdraw the money.

Fostor was just one of the first of
scores of high lovel U.S, political
figures ta thus have thefr secrat Swise
sccounts looted of illelt funds,
according to both this veleran CIA
gource and a separate source in
anothar intolligonce agency. Over
the pesl two years, they say. more
than $2 billion has boan swept out
of affshore bank accounis balonging
10 figures connected to tha U.S. gov-
ernmont with nary & peep from the
viciiras or (hafr banks. The claim that
Foster and other US. figures have
had offshors mocounte has bsen
confirmed by a soparaw high-ranking
ClA source and another in the
Departmont of Justioe.

Various sotrces, somd of them
controveraial, have contributed other
pieces to this puzzie. Whataver thelr
motivations, these sources have
proven remarkably consistent. Their

storfes jibe well with known facts and .

offer 8 most plansible explanation for
Foster's mystorious deprassion. It
would also oxplain Washingwn’s
determmed elfort to dismiss the
Poster affalr as a sragic but simplo
auicido.

Vince Faster u spy? Actually, it is
much worse that that, if the ClAs
suspicions are confirmed by the
ongoing foreign counterintalligence
probe. He would have bsen an
invaluable double sgent with poten-
tis] socwas to not only high-level
political informatfon, but ales to
sensliive codo, encrypiion and data
{ranamission secrats, the stuff by
which modern war is won or lost.
Tha: is because [or many years,
according to hine separate current
and Jormor US. law anforcemeont or
intolligence officisls, Foster had been
a hohind-the-pcenes manager of & key
supporl company in one of the
biggest, most secretive spy efforis on
rocord, the gilent surveillance of
banking transaciions both hars and
abroad.

Thia bank snooping effort began
in earnast scon aftar Ronald Reagan
bacame president in 198). lts prima-
ry ain) was 1o irack the money behind
internationsl ierrorigls groups and
goon came o ba dubbed. “Pollow the

money”, socording to the originator

of the progrsm Norman A. Bailey.
Now a private Washington consultant
on international banking, Balley was
an sconomist und Reagan advisor on
the National Sacurity Counsel. [t was
Bafley's {dea 10 begin uxing powerful
now computer and electronic saves-
dropping technologies then smerging
to let the Intslligence community
monitor the previously confidental
Dow of hank wire iransfers. This was
no small task; more than $1 wrillion &
dsy moves through New York alone.
Balley himself constrained by the

Various sources, some
of them controversial,
have contributed other
places to this puzzle.
Whatever their
motivations, these
sources hape proven
remarkably consistent.
Their stories Jibe well
with known jacts and
offer a most plausible
explanation for
Foster's mysterious
depression.
National Seourity Act, claims he does-

n't know axuctly how the dais was
collected. But he confirms that with-

" In a fow years tha Nationa] Secutity

Agency, tha gignals intalligence arm
of the government, had begun vacu-
uming up mountains of dats by He-
tening in on bank wire wafflo. It
became & joint offort of several
Western governmenis with the
laraslis playing a leading role, since
they were tha maln target of
{errorism.

Other intelligence experts say the
flow of hits and bytes was captured
by various moans; from simply tap-
ping phone Jinea to implanung
cuatomdzed chips in bank computers
10 sore up and perlodically burs-
transmit date W & passing van, or
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low-fylng *sig-int” or signale Intalll.
gonco satallita.  Another part of the
problem was 1o get tho world's banks
to standardize thelr data so that ft
could be easily analyzod. And that

"brings us io PROMIS, a powerful

tracking sofiware dovoloped faor the
U.S. Covernmont and then further
snhanced by s little company called
Inalaw Inc.

PROMIS stands [or Prosecutor's
Management Informaiuon Systsms
and was deelgned o manage logul
casas. In 1982, just as DBalley's
foliow-the-money effort was gaining
sleamn, tha Reagan Jusiice Depari.
ment eagerly snapped up Inslaw’s
nowest varsion of PROMIS. But the
govarrunent refused 1o pay tho $6
million owed for it, dJuiming pari of
the conwset was not fulilled. Inslaw,
forced into Chapier 11 reorganiza.
tion, and noarly driven to quick
liquidation by the government and its
foymsr partner AT&T, hotly denied
thet olaim. Ultimately, 8 bankruptoy
judge ruled tho government stole the
PROMIS sofiware by “trickory, fraud
and deceit®.

Why PROMIS? Decauso it was
adaptable. Basidos tracking logal
cases, it could be saxily customized to
track saything from computer chip
design to complex monseiary transac-
tions. & was eapedially nseful for
tracking criminals or just plain politi-
ca] diesidents. Inslew clafins the soft-
ware wus aveniually fllegally sold to
as many as 50 countcies for use by
their police, military or intolligance
agencies, including such bloedy

regimes 3¢ Guatemala, South Afrioa’

and Iraq (before the 1990 invasion of
Kuwah). Profits on these salcs,
Inslaw clalms, went mainly into the
private pockeots of Repubdean political
cronjas in the 1980s, inciuding
Reagan confldent Barl Brain, former
pari-owner of UPI and PNN.

Among tho biggest profiteers on
PROMIS, sovording 1o the 1892 book
by formoer lsraelf anti-ierrorism
staffer Ari Ben-Menasche, was for-
mer Britiah publisher Bob Maxwell
On behalf of the laraglis, Maxwsll
aggressively marketed & doctored
version of PROMIS equipped with ono
or more "back doors® (o allow an out-
sider to tap inlo the user’s datx base
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withaut Jeaving a8n aud(t wail, In fact,
it may have beon such rigged pro-
graims that ailowed nated Israoll spy
Jonathan Pollard. (rom his computer
terminal at tha Offico of Naval
Intoligonce in Washinglon, Lo down:
losd vast smounts of top sseret U.S.
nucloar weapons and code data fn tha
mid-1980s.

According to a heavily-redacted
Now Mexico FBI counwrintslligence
roport, Maxwell wasg apparontly
allowed to 1cl} two coplos of PROMIS
back to tha U.S. woapons labe at
Sandia and Loa Alamoa, for what
Inslaw claims was & hugely inflazed
price of $37 million. Tnat would have
allowed Pollard, if he was using the
riggod program, to obtain US. missile
{argeting data long beforc larael had
f1a own saiellito capability. thus mak-
tng I & renl nudoar threal to the
Soviet Union. Pollard was convicted
of esplonage and gentenced in 1986
w iifo imprisonmeni. US. officials
have vehemently opposed efforts to
gain his early release.

Maxwell. according to Ben-
Manasche xnd nina other souirces,
was slso selling pirated versions of
PROMIS to major world banks for
ugo in thair wire transafer rooms to
track the blixzard of numbers, autho-
rization codes and confirmations
required on each wire transction.
Dopn’t oxpect any banks to admit run-
ning PROMIS. They probably now
know [t was pilfered. But they readi-
ly 1ok it both baoause ji was tha beat
tracking sofiwars avallable st the
ume and hocauss the US. govern-
ment was lacitly Jeaning on them to
go along with the survofllance effort
or face rogulatory reprisals or prose-
cation on money laundering charges.
Wwith the widespread adoplion of
PROMIS, the data bocame standard-
1204 and much oasier 1o analyze by
tho NSA.

1t 100k somne offort to Install and
support PROMIS In the banking
industry. That's where Vinea Foster
cume jn. Sources say hat snos al
loast the late 1970s, Foster had been
a gllent. behind-the-scenes overscor
on behalf of the NSA for a pmall Litle
Rock, Ark. bank data processing

company. il narmne was Systemalics
wulne., launchad in 1967 and funded
% and contrallad for most of its life

[ A R IRV BV R AV ) o

PHONE NO. © B124778677

by Arksnsas billionaire Jackson
Stephens, a 1946 Naval Acadamy
graduate along with Jimmy Carter.
Foster was one of Stephens’ trusted

deal makers at the Rose Law Pirm,
where he was partner with Hillary
Rodham Clinton, Wabster Hubball-
and William Kennedy (whosa fathar
was a Systernatics director). Hubbell
slso played an ovarseer rola at
Systematice for the NSA for some
years according to intelligence
sources. '

Systematiod has had close ties to
tha NSA and CIA ever sinca its found-

Sources say that since
at least the late
1970s, Foster had
beesn a silent, behind-
the-scenes overseer on
.bcha‘f of the NSA for a
small Little Rock, Ark.,
bank data processing
company. Its name
was Systematics Inc.,
launched in 1967 and
funded and controlled
Jor most of its life by
Arkansas billionaire
Jackson Stephens, a
- 1946 Naval Academy
graduate.

ing, sources say, as & money-ghuffler
for covert oparations. 1t ia no secret
that there were billions of dollars
moving around in *hlack” accounts —
from buying and selling arms to the
Contras, lran, Iraq, Angela and other
cotmtries to paying CIA operatives
and laundering money from clandes-
tine CIA drug dealing. Having teken
gvec the complets computer rooms in
scores of small U.S. banks as an “out-
sourced™ supplier of data processiug,
Systamatcs was in a unique positlon
10 manage that covert money flow.
Sources say the money was moved &t
the end of every day disguised ss &
toutine bank-to-bank balancing
transactlon. out of view of bank
regulators and even the banks them-
selves. In shor. It became cyber-
monsy.

" known within the sgoncy in the
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One man who uncovernd the link
boiwean Systemstics, Fostor and
covert mohqy movements {rom arms
and drugs was Bob Bickol, who wis

an undercover Customs investigaior
in the 1980s. “We found Systomatica
was ofien & conduft for ths funds”
in arms and drug tapaaclions,
saye Bickel. now living in Toxas:
“They wore the moncy changors.”
His story is corroborated by a formor
CIA employse who says it was wall

{ats 1970s that Fostor was invalved
with Systematics in covert money
mensgomsnt.

Another source is Michasl
Riconcsciwte, former tosoarch direc-
tor of the cavert arma operation al
California’s tiny Cabazon Indian
Reservation in the esrly 1960s.
Ricanoscitto claims his crew of com»
puter programmers helped oustornize
PROMIS there for banking and other-.
use. He & now serving S0 years in o
South Carolina faderal prison ostonsi-
bly on drug charges. Though maybe
not & cradible sourco on his own, hia
story fits well with other sourced.

Systematics’ money-laundering
role for the intalliigence community
might help explain why Jackson
Stepbans tried o 1ake over Washing:
ton-based Financial Ganeral Bank-
sharses in 1978 on behalf of Arsd
backers of the Bank of Credit &nd
Commeros International. BCCI's links
to global corruption and intelligence
operations has boen well docuracnted,
though many mysteries remain.

Ascording to & lawsuit (iled by the
Ssouritiss and Bxchange Commis-
tion, Stephens Insisted on having
then-iiny Systematics brought in to
taka over all of FGB's data prodédaing.
Representing Systemsiics in that
1978 SEC case: Hillary Rodham
Clinton and Webster Hubbell:
Stephens was blocked In that
takeover. But PGB, lator ronamed
Pirgt Amecican, ulimatoly fell under
the alleged domination of BCCl
through Robart Alimen and former
Dafense Sscretary Clark Clifford.
According o a tschnictan who
worked for First American in Allsnia,
Systamatcs becamse 8 key computer
contractor there anyway.

In the 1580s. Syswomatics’ bus!-
ness boomed. When it first sold stock
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Questions for c1a and NSA repregentatives
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As you know, there have been many publighed

Teports and allegations that the airport in

Mena, Arkansas, was the base for a signifi-

cant operation, allegedly in support of con-
tra operations in Central America.

Planes Yeportedly flew arms to the Contras in-
Nicaragua and returned from Central America
with drugs, and the proceeds from the sale of _m
these drugs was then supposedly in
Arkansas, possibly with the knowledge of
gtate authorities and the involvement of

- companies called Park-o-Meter_ and 8ystema-
tics. There are tale »

Please understand that 1 am not interested in
launching a new probe of our Contra policy
with the intent of suggesting wrongdoing by
Your agencies. What I am obligated to do is
probe Whitewater-related allegations so that
they can be proven true or false, as well as
certain other issueg that fall under the
jurisdiction of the Banking and International
Relations committeeg on which I gerve. There
is a lot of smoke here and possibly very
little fire. Neverthelesas, it is important
that I be able to affirm that all allegations
have been thoroughly reviewed.
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General Queastions

~- Have any of you or anyone else at
either the CIA or the NSA discussed this
inquiry from us with anyone at the White
Houge, the Debartment of Justice br any other

government organization?

~-  Does the CIA or NSA have knowledge
of or any involvement in clandestine activity
by the U.s. Government or any private parties
in or near Mena, Arkansas, in the 1980s?

-~ Have any reports on activities in
and around Mena been prepared for the DCI,
specifically, for former Director Woolsey?

A. Gun Smuggling 3

-~ Did the CIA or NSA have any
involvement in, or knowledge of, any opera-
tion by the U.8, government or the go-called
"private benefactorg” (led by retired Gen.
Richard Secord) to train pilots and/or ehip
armg from the Rich inter-mountain regional
airport at Mena to the Nicaraguan Contras?

-- If so, dig any such activities
take place with the knowledge or approval of
other Federal officialg?

~=  Did any such activities take

place with the knowledge or approval of Ar-
kansas state government officialsg?

R A SN Y
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- Did the CIA contract with any
Arkansas manfacturers to build automatic
weapons for the Nicaraguan Contrasg?

- Does the CIA or NSA have any
contractual relationship with, or knowledge
of, an Arkansas company called Park-o-Meter,
also known as POM? Do.you have any reason to
believe that Pom produced disposable fuel
tanks for use by Barry Seal and possibly
others in connection with supplying arms to
the Contras?

B. Barry Seal and Associates

-- Did the CIA or NSA have any
contractual or other relationship with the
late Adler Barriman "Barry" Seal (Seal was
murdered, allegedly at the direction of Co-
lumbian drug lords, in Feb. 1986) 2>

- To your knowledge, did any
other government agency (such as the DEA or
DIA) have any contractual or other relation-
ship with Barry Seal?

-~ Is the CIA or NSA aware of any
IRS determination that money earned by Seal
between 1984 and 15986 was not illegal because
of his alleged CIA-DEA employment?

-- Did the CIA have any involve-
ment in, ox knowledge of, the installation of
cameras on Seal’s C-123K transport plane for

3
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use in a 1984 "sting" operation against thé
Sandinista official Federico Vaughan?

-- / Was Seal’g (C-123K cargo plane,
christened Fat Lady (serial number 54-0673),
sold by Seal to the CIA or any other U.s.-
government related entity? Was this plane
later shot down over Nicaragqua with a load of
arms destined for the Contras?

-- Did the CIA have any contrac-

tual or other relationship with Terry Reed, a

former Air Force intelligence officer (who
claims he had a relationship with the CIA in

the 19808) and author of Compromised; Clin-
ton, Bugh and _the CIa?

-- Did the cIA ever have dealings
with former Arkansasg 8tate Trooper L.D.
Brown?

~- Is the CIA or NSA aware of any

attempts by federal or state officials to

interfere with or terminate any investigation
the IRS, Justice Department, Arkansas State
Police or any other law-enforcement authori-
ties into Mena-related criminal conduct?

C. Narcotics Smuggling

-- Did the CIA or NSA have any
knowledge of or involvement in illieit nar-
cotics trafficking, possibly by rogue opera-
tives, in or near Mena, Arkansag? As you
know, there have been allegations that on

4
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their return flights from Central Amoerica,
pilots smuggled more than 20 tons of cocaine

into Menasa.

-- Did the CIA or Nsa have anv
indication that‘

-- Does the CIA or NSA have any
indication that by Barry Seal or his associ- =
ates attempted to\

-—- Does the CIA Qr NSA have any

indication that| |

- |

==—Dces the CIA or NSA know of any
‘or more

ever held by U.3. ¢itizens domiciled in Ar-
kangas at anytime between 1988 and now?

-- ‘Ie,the CIA or NSA aware, di-

rectly or indirectly, of anv effarta bl
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-- jDoea the CIA have the capgbili-

ty of‘

-- Does the NSA have the capabili-

'ty of

—~ -

does CIA and/or NSA have the capability,
directly or through another party, of =

-~ Does CIA or NSA have the

authority to

-~ Has CIA

-- Does the CIA maintain a team of
skilled computer hackers who routinely break
into the electronic data systems of foreign
bankg? According to one source, this group

6
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is informally known as the Fifth Column.

Correct?

-- poes the NSA

]

-- Does the CIA‘Er NSA know of oxr
has either agency participated in, directly
or indirectly, efforts to sell software--
notably veraions of a program in use at the
Justice Department called PROMIS
--or other devices to foreign banks for the

purpose of facilitating
of their electronic data systems.

~- Does the CIA or NSA know of
customerg to whom this software has been

s0l1d?
: -- I8 the CIA or NSA aware of any
attempts by | L
-~ Does CIA or NSA know of any
efforts by -
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-~ Hag the CIA or NSA received any

indication that proceeds from the sale of
PROMIS or similar software were used to fi-
nance axrms shipments to the Contras? ‘

-- Are there any indications of

-- Is the CIA or NSA aware of any
unauthorized efforts, possibly in the margin

of legitimate intellij :

-- Does CIA or NSA know of a
Charles Hayes, who was born on 4/27/35, whose
social security number is ‘and
who now resides in Nancy, Kentucky?

-~ I1f so, has Hayes ever had any
ties to the CIA or NSA or any other U.S.
government agency? Have these ties been gev-

-exed?

-- Hayes claims to be able to
break into the electronic data systems of
foreign banks. Has CIA]

-- Ip NSA or CIA aware of an ac-
count, number b-142AB2, at the Banca Della
Svizzera Ttaliana in Chiasso, said to have
belonged to Vincent Foster?
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- Is either the CIA or NSA aware
of any foreign governments that might have
provided arms, money or assistance to any

group operating out of Mena? .
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